FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Findings, Opinions and Orders

IN THE MATTER OF
ALBERTSON’S, INC.

SET ASIDE ORDER IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE CLAYTON
AND THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACTS

Docket C-3064. Consent Order, April 21, 1981—Set Aside Order, July 1, 1987

The Federal Trade Commission has set aside a 1981 consent order with Albertson’s,
Inc., (97 F.T.C. 343), thus removing the Commission’s prior approval requirement
because there no longer appears to be a trend toward concentration in the relevant
market.

ORDER REOPENING AND SETTING ASIDE
ORDER ISSUED ON APRIL 21, 1981

On March 3, 1987, Albertson’s, Inc. (“Albertson’s”) filed a “Petition
To Reopen And Set Aside Consent Order” (“Request”), pursuant to
section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(b), and
section 2.51 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice. The request asked
the Commission to reopen and set aside the consent order issued on
April 21, 1981 (“the order”). Albertson’s request was placed on the
public record for thirty days, pursuant to section 2.51 of the Commis-
sion’s Rules. No comments were received.

The complaint in this case was issued under Section 7 of the Clayton
Act and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and alleged
anticompetitive effects arising from Albertson’s acquisition of Fazio’s,
the California Division of Fisher Foods, Inc., in July 1978. According
to the complaint, the relevant product line in which to assess the
acquisition was retail sales by retail grocery stores and the relevant
geographic market was Los Angeles County and Orange County, Cali-
fornia. The order prohibits Albertson’s for a ten year period from
acquiring, without prior Commission approval, five or more retail
grocery stores in fifteen designated states and certain other geograph-
ic areas. Albertson’s, Inc., 97 FTC 343, 345, 347-348 (1981).

Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(b),
provides that the Commission shall reopen an order to consider
whether it should be altered, modified, or set aside, in whole or in
part, if the respondent makes a satisfactory showing that changed
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conditions of law or fact require the order to be modified or set aside.
A satisfactory showing sufficient to require reopening is made when
a request to reopen identifies significant changes in circumstances
and shows that the changes eliminate the need for the order or make
continued application of the order inequitable or harmful to competi-
tion. Louisiana-Pacific Corp., Docket No. C-2956, Letter to John C.
Hart (June 5, 1986), at 4.

Section 5(b) also provides that the Commission may modify an order
when, although changed circumstances would not require reopening,
the Commission determines that the public interest so requires. Re-
spondents are invited in petitions to reopen to show how the public
interest warrants the requested modification. 16 CFR 2.51. To obtain
review on this ground, the respondent must demonstrate as a thresh-
old matter some affirmative need to modify the order. Damon Corp.,
Docket No. C-2916, Letter to Joel E. Hoffman, Esq. (March 24, 1984),
at 2 (“Damon Letter”). For example, it may be in the public interest
to modify an order “to relieve any impediment to effective competi-
tion that may result from the order.” Damon Corp., Docket No. C-
2916, 101 FTC 689, 692 (1983). Once such a showing of need is made,
the Commission will balance the reasons favoring the modification
requested against any reasons not to make the modification. Damon
Letter at 2.

After reviewing Albertson’s request, the Commission has concluded
that respondent has not made a satisfactory showing that changed
circumstances require that the order be set aside. The only real
change that respondent has shown is that there is no longer a trend
toward concentration in the relevant market. That change by itself
does not establish that there is no further need for the order.

The Commission has concluded, however, that it is in the public
interest to reopen and set aside the order. Albertson’s has shown that
the prior approval requirements of the order impose costs on respond-
ent and put it at a disadvantage with respect to its competitors who
are not under similar restraints. This affirmative need to modify the
order must be weighed against the need for continuing the order. The
costs shown by Albertson’s were foreseeable at the time respondent
agreed to the order and would not ordinarily provide a sufficient basis
to justify termination of the order. However, respondent has also
demonstrated that there is no continuing competitive need for the
order in the Los Angeles/Orange County market that was the focus
of the Commission’s complaint. The respondent has shown that the
relevant market is relatively unconcentrated and that any trend to-
ward concentration that may have existed at the time the order issued
appears to have been arrested. Accordingly, the reasons for setting
aside the order outweigh the reasons for retaining the order.
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The Commission has likewise concluded that it is in the public
interest to set aside the prior approval requirements of the order with
respect to the fifteen states and other geographic areas which are
designated therein. The allegations of the complaint related exclu-
sively to the Los Angeles/Orange County market and with the setting
aside of the primary relief, the ancillary relief should also be set aside.

Accordingly, It is ordered, That this matter be, and it hereby is
reopened and that the Commission’s order issued on April 21, 1981,
shall be set aside as of the effective date of this order.

Commissioner Bailey was recorded as voting in the negative.
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IN THE MATTER OF
AMERICAN HOECHST CORPORATION, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC. 7 OF
THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3215. Complaint, July 2, 1987—Decision, July 2, 1987

This consent order permits, among other things, American Hoechst Corp. to divest
certain polyester fiber businesses. The respondent must make the divestiture to a
Commission-approved acquirer within one year and must obtain the Commission’s
prior approval for certain acquisitions for the next ten years.

Appearances

For the Commission: Rhett Krulla, Ronald B. Rowe, and Jeffrey I
Zuckerman.

For the respondents: William R. Norfolk, Sullivan & Cromuwell,
Washington, D.C. and William Pelster, Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagh-
er, & Flom, New York City.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”), having reason to
believe that respondents, American Hoechst Corporation, Hoechst
Aktiengesellschaft, referred to herein collectively as “Hoechst,” and
Celanese Corporation, corporations subject to the jurisdiction of the
Commission, have entered into an agreement, described in paragraph
15 herein, that, if consummated, would violate the provisions of Sec-
tion 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; that
said agreement and the actions of respondents to implement that
agreement constitute violations of Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding in respect thereof would be in the
public interest, the Commission hereby issues its Complaint, pursu-
ant to Section 11 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 21, and Section 5(b) of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(b), stating its charges
as follows: [2]

I. DEFINITIONS

1. For purposes of this complaint, the following definitions shall ap-
ply:
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a. "Hoechst” means American Hoechst Corporation, its parent, Ho-
echst Aktiengesellschaft, its predecessors, subsidiaries (including, but
not limited to, Hostachem Acquisition Incorporated), divisions,
groups, affiliate entities (including, but not limited to, Wacker and
related entities), and each of their past or present directors, officers,
employees, agents, and representatives; and each partnership, joint
venture, joint stock company, or concession in which Hoechst is a
participant. The words “subsidiary,” “affiliate,” and “joint venture”
refer to any partial (10 percent cr more), as well as total, ownership
or control.

b. “Celanese” means Celanese Corporation, its predecessors, sub-
sidiaries, divisions, groups, affiliate entities, and each of their past or
present directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives;
and each partnership, joint venture, joint stock company, or conces-
sion in which Celanese is a participant. The words “subsidiary,” “af-
filiate,” and “joint venture” refer to any partial (10 percent or more),
as well as total, ownership or control.

c. The "acquisition” means the transaction described, in whole or
in part, in paragraph 15 of this complaint.

d. “Polyester fibers” or “polyester” means manufactured fibers in
which the fiber-forming substance is any long-chain synthetic polym-
er composed of polyethylene teraphthalate, a chemical polymer
derived from the polycondensation of ethylene glycol with either di-
methyl teraphthalate or [3] teraphthalic acid. “Polyester fibers” in-
clude polyester staple and polyester filament.

e. "Textile polyester fibers” means any polyester fibers used in the
production of textiles, which includes fabrics and yarns used primari-
ly in apparel, carpeting, home furnishings, and automotive applica-
tions.

f. “Textile polyester filament” means continuous threads, or “fila-
ments,” of polyester produced for textile applications. “Textile polyes-
ter filament” does not include polyester staple.

g. “Polyester staple” means any short fiber of polyester that is cut
from spun polyester. “Polyester staple” includes fiberfill and tow.

II. AMERICAN HOECHST CORPORATION

2. Respondent American Hoechst Corporation (“American Ho-
echst”) is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Delaware, with its principal place of business located at 1041
Route 202-206 North, Somerville, New Jersey. American Hoechst is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the West German corporation, Hoechst
Aktiengesellschatft.

3. American Hoechst is one of the largest producers of textile
polyester fibers, including both polyester staple and textile polyester
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filament, in the United States. Overall operations of American Ho-
echst in the United States include the production and sale of various
petrochemicals, plastics, and pharmaceuticals. [4]

4. Respondent American Hoechst had sales of approximately $1.6
billion in 1985 on overall operations of the company in the United
States.

5. American Hoechst’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Hosta-
chem Acquisition Incorporated, a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, is a holding company that
has been formed to purchase the capital stock of Celanese.

6. American Hoechst is, and at all times relevant herein has been,
engaged in commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose
business is in or affecting commerce as “commerce” is defined in
Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
44,

1II. HOECHST AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

7. Respondent Hoechst Aktiengesellschaft (“Hoechst AG”) is a for-
eign corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Federal
Republic of Germany, with its principal place of business located at
D-6230 (Main) 80, Frankfurt, Federal Republic of Germany. Hoechst
AG is the corporate parent of American Hoechst.

8. The Hoechst group of companies produces a diverse range of
products, including polyester and polyester raw materials. Respond-
ent Hoechst AG is one of the largest producers of polyester fibers in
the world.

9. Net income for respondent Hoechst AG overall in 1985 was ap-
proximately $499 million on sales of $14.5 billion. The fibers and fiber
raw materials business [5] segment of the company accounted for 10
percent of total corporate sales.

10. Hoechst AG is, and at all times relevant herein has been, en-
gaged in commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose
business is in or affecting commerce as “‘commerce” is defined in
Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
44,

IV. CELANESE CORPORATION

11. Respondent Celanese Corporation (“Celanese”) is a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with
its principal executive offices and place of business located at 1211
Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York.

12. Celanese produces polyester fibers at manufacturing facilities
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in the United States, Canada, and Mexico. Celanese is the second
largest producer of textile polyester fibers, including both polyester
staple and textile polyester filament, in the United States, and is the
only producer of textile polyester fibers in Canada.

13. Respondent Celanese’s overall net income was $178 million in
1985 on sales of approximately $3 billion.

14. Celanese is, and at all times relevant herein has been, engaged
in commerece as “commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose business is in-
or affecting commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44. [6]

V. THE ACQUISITION

15. On or about November 3, 1986, Hoechst commenced a cash
tender offer for up to 100 percent of the issued and outstanding shares
of Celanese common stock and preferred stock, with the intent of
effecting a merger of Hostachem Acquisition Incorporated, a Dela-
ware corporation wholly-owned by Hoechst, into Celanese, all as con-
templated in the Agreement of Merger entered into among Hoechst,
its subsidiary, and Celanese, on November 2, 1986. Pursuant to that
Agreement, Celanese’s Board of Directors has approved Hoechst’s
tender offer, has recommended its acceptance by Celanese stockhold-
ers, and has agreed to approve the merger of Hostachem Acquisition
Incorporated into Celanese following the tender offer. If the acquisi-
tion is consummated as presently contemplated, the total value of the
transaction will be approximately $2.7 billion. Through this proposed
stock acquisition, Hoechst will effectively acquire the polyester busi-
ness of Celanese.

V1. TRADE AND COMMERCE

16. For purposes of this complaint, relevant lines of commerce in
which to evaluate the effects of the acquisition are:

a. the manufacture, distribution, and sale of polyester staple; and

b. the manufacture, distribution, and sale of textile polyester fila-
ment. [7]

17. For purposes of this complaint, the relevant section of the coun-
try in which to evaluate the effects of the acquisition with respect to
each of the relevant lines of commerce is the United States as a whole.

VII. MARKET STRUCTURE

18.In 1986, approximately 2.1 billion pounds of polyester staple was
produced in the United States. The polyester staple market is highly
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concentrated, whether measured by the Herfindahi-Hirschmann
Index (“HHI”) or by four-firm and eight-firm concentration ratios.

19. In 1986, approximately 844 million pounds of textile polyester
filament was produced in the United States. The textile polyester
filament market is highly concentrated, whether measured by the
HHI or by four-firm and eight-firm concentration ratios.

VIII. ENTRY CONDITIONS

20. It is difficult to enter into the manufacture, distribution, and
sale of polyester staple or of textile polyester filament.

XI1. ACTUAL COMPETITION

21. Hoechst and Celanese are actual competitors in the manufac-
ture, distribution, and sale of polyester staple and of textile polyester
filament. [8]

X. EFFECTS

22. The aforesaid acquisition, if consummated, will significantly
increase the levels of concentration in the relevant markets.

23. The effect of the aforesaid acquisition, if consummated, may be
substantially to lessen competition in each of the relevant markets in
violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18,
and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45, in the following ways, among others:

a. it will eliminate actual competition between Hoechst and Cela-
nese and between Celanese and others in the relevant markets; and

b. it will significantly enhance the possibility of collusion or inter-
dependent coordination among the remaining firms in the relevant
markets.

XI. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

24. The proposed acquisition of the capital stock of Celanese by
Hoechst would, if consummated, violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18.

25. The Agreement of Merger described in paragraph 15 constitutes
a violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 45.

26. The proposed acquisition of the capital stock of Celanese by
Hoechst would, if consummated, violate Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45. [9]

Chairman Oliver was recorded as voting in the negative.
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DEecisioN AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
the acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding common and other
voting stock of Celanese Corporation (“Celanese”) by Hostachem Ac-
quisition Incorporated, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ameri-
can Hoechst Corporation (“American Hoechst”) which is a subsidiary
of Hoechst Aktiengesellschaft (collectively “Hoechst”) and the subse-
quent mergers of Celanese with Hostachem Acquisition Incorporated
and Hostachem with American Hoechst, and Hoechst and Celanese,
having been furnished with a copy of a draft complaint that the
Bureau of Competition has presented to the Commission for its consid-
eration, and which, if issued by the Commission would charge Hoechst
and Celanese with violations of the Clayton Act and Federal Trade
Commission Act; and [2]

Respondents Hoechst and Celanese, their attorneys, and counsel for
the Commission having thereafter executed an agreement containing
a consent order, an admission by respondents of all the jurisdictional
facts set forth in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the
signing of said agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not
constitute an admission by respondents that the law has been violated
as alleged in such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as
required by the Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and hav-
ing determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents
have violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the execut-
ed consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, and having duly considered the com-
ments filed thereafter by interested persons pursuant to Section 2.34
of its Rules, now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed
in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its com-
plaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters the
following order:

1. Hoechst Aktiengesellschaft is an alien corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany, with its
executive offices located at 6230 Frankfurt (Main) 80, Federal Repub-
lic of Germany. [3]

2. American Hoechst Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hoechst Aktiengesellschaft, is a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its executive offices
located at 1041 Route 202-206 North, Somerville, New Jersey.

3. Celanese Corporation is a corporation organized and existing
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under the laws of the State of Delaware, with its executive offices
located at 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York.

4. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of Hoechst and Celanese, and the pro-
ceeding is in the public interest.

ORDER
L

It is hereby ordered, That as used in this order, the following defini-
tions shall apply:

(a) "Acquisition” means Hoechst’s acquisition of shares of the com-
mon and other voting stock of Celanese, a merger of Celanese with
Hostachem Acquisition Incorporated and a merger of Hostachem
with American Hoechst. [4]

(b) “Polyester staple and textile filament fibers” means synthetic
fiber composed of polyethylene terephthalate, including both cut fiber
and continuous filaments, used in apparel, carpeting, upholstery,
home furnishing, or other textile applications, but not including
monofilament, spunbond, sewing thread, and high-tenacity industrial
filament (which includes industrial filament produced or sold by Cela-
nese’s Industrial Fiber business unit).

(¢) "Polyester textile fiber assets and businesses” means assets and
operations in the United States relating to the manufacture, distribu-
tion, sale, research and development of polyester staple or textile
filament fibers, including goodwill, customer files, patents, know how,
and the “Fortrel” trademark for Celanese’s and the “Trevira” trade-
mark for American Hoechst’s polyester textile fiber business, respec-
tively, as well as assets and operations related to the manufacture,
distribution, sale, research and development of polyethylene tereph-
thalate for use in the manufacture of polyester staple and textile
filament fibers.

(d) “Celanese” means Celanese Corporation, as it was constituted
prior to the acquisition, including its parents, predecessors, subsidiar-
ies, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by Celanese and their
respective successors and assigns. [5]

(e) “Hoechst” means Hoechst Aktiengesellschaft, American Ho-
echst Corporation, Hostachem Acquisition Incorporated, their prede-
cessors, subsidiaries, divisions, groups and affiliates controlled by
Hoechst and their respective directors, officers, employees, agents
and representatives, and their respective successors and assigns.
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It is further ordered, That:

(A) Hoechst shall divest, absolutely and in good faith, within twelve
months from the date this order becomes final, either:

1. the following portion of the polyester textile fiber assets and
businesses in the United States of the Celanese Textile Fibers Busi-
ness Group, which group is included in the descriptions on pages 5-6
of the Celanese Corporation 1985 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and on pages 12-13 of
the 1985 Celanese Annual Report:

(a) all assets at Celanese’s Florence (“Palmetto”), South Carolina
and Fayetteville, North Carolina manufacturing facilities; [6]

(b) All polyester staple production capacity, and all polyester te-
rephthalate production capacity currently used in the production of
polyester staple, at Celanese’s Salisbury, North Carolina manufactur-
ing facility and such additional assets as are currently used at that
facility in the production of polyester staple fiber and are requested
by the prospective acquirer provided, however, that Hoechst (i) is not
required to divest the assets at the facility that relate to the supply,
utilities and service arrangements and agreements that Hoechst is
required to supply in accordance with the provisions of paragraph II
(B) 3; (ii) is only required to permit the acquirer to use on a nonexclu-
sive basis (under a suitable license, lease, contract or similar arrange-
ment), and is not required to divest, current technology or know-how
at the Salisbury facility that is also used or usable in the businesses
of Celanese or Hoechst that are not being divested; and (iii) will not
be required to divest any portion of the Salisbury manufacturing
facility, or any assets at that facility, if the Commission in its discre-
tion determines that such divestiture is not required; {7]

(c) such assets at Celanese’s Dreyfus Research Park in Charlotte,
North Carolina as the prospective acquirer requests and will continue
to use in conjunction with the operations of Celanese’s polyester tex-
tile fiber manufacturing facilities that are divested to that acquirer;

(d) two of the type 30 POY spinning machines and associated wind-
ing equipment currently located and operating at Celanese’s plant
located in Greenville, South Carolina that the acquirer intends to use
to produce POY textile filament in the United States;

(e) such other Celanese polyester textile fiber assets and business in
the United States as are currently used by the Celanese Textile Fibers
Business Group and are requested by the prospective acquirer for
continued use in the administration, manufacture, distribution, sale,
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research and development, or technical support of polyester staple
and textile filament fibers, except such of those assets specified in the
following provision to this paragraph II (A) 1. [8]

Provided, however, that Hoechst shall not be required to divest:

() Celanese’s facilities at Shelby, North Carolina and (except as
provided in II (A) 1 (d), above) Greenville, South Carolina,

(ii) the “Fortrel” trademark unless the IT A 1 properties are divested
and the prospective acquirer requests the right to use that trademark
and then Hoechst is only required to provide suitable licenses or
similar arrangement for use of that trademark in the United States
for polyester staple and textile filament fibers; or

(iii) Celanese’s polyester textile fiber assets and businesses that
satisfy the following conditions: 1) either such assets are administra-
tive facilities that are not located at the facilities or locations specified
in paragraph II (A) 1 (a), (b) and (¢) or such assets consist of technology
or know-how, 2) such assets have been used or continue to be used in
conjunction with other assets of Celanese not required to be divested,
and 3) Hoechst provides the acquirer in lieu of [9] divestiture of such
assets suitable leases, licenses or similar arrangements on a nonexclu-
sive basis.

(The foregoing assets and businesses are hereinafter referred to as the
“II A 1 properties.”) or

2. All of the polyester textile fiber assets and businesses of Ameri-
can Hoechst, including:

(a) all of the polyester textile fiber assets and businesses of Hoechst
Fiber Industries (“HFI”), a division of American Hoechst; provided,
however, Hoechst is entitled to negotiate suitable arrangements with
the acquirer necessary to operate the retained assets and businesses
relating to the manufacture and sale of monofilament, spunbond and
solid-state resins;

(b) all polyester staple and textile filament production capacity at
American Hoechst’s, Spartanburg, South Carolina manufacturing
facility and such additional assets as are currently used at that facili-
ty in the production of polyester staple and textile filament fiber and
are requested by the [10] prospective acquirer; provided, however,
that Hoechst (i) is not required to divest the assets at that facility that
relate to the supply, utilities and service arrangements and agree-
ments that Hoechst is required to supply in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph II (B) (3); and (ii) is only required to permit
the acquirer to use on a nonexclusive basis (under a suitable license,
lease contract or similar arrangement), and is not required to divest,
current technology or know-how at the Spartanburg facility that is
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also used or useable in the businesses of Celanese or Hoechst that are
not being divested.

(c) all the capacity to manufacture polyethylene terephthalate
necessary to ensure a self sufficiency of supply for the divested assets
at the capacity levels that they currently operate; and

(d) such research and development assets at Spartanburg, South
Carolina as the prospective acquirer requests and will continue to use
in conjunction with the operations of American Hoechst’s polyester
textile fiber [11] manufacturing facilities that are divested to that
acquirer.

Provided, however, that Hoechst shall not be required to divest the
“Trevira” trademark uniess the IT A 2 properties are divested and the
prospective acquirer requests the right to use that trademark and
then Hoechst is only required to provide suitable licenses or similar
arrangement for use of that trademark in the United States for
polyester staple and textile filament fibers.

(The foregoing assets and businesses are hereinafter referred to as the
“II A 2 properties”.)

(B) In conjunction with the divestiture, Hoechst and Celanese shall:

1. assign to the acquirer of the II A 1 properties the Service Agree-
ment dated March 13, 1981 (and certain related agreements) between
Celanese and Monsanto Company;

2. provide any easements and rights of way that are requested by
the prospective acquirer and that facilitate the operation of the II A
assets; [12]

3. if the polyester staple operations of Celanese’s Salisbury facility
or the II A 2 properties are divested, provide the acquirer, at fair
market price, supply arrangements and utilities and service agree-
ments (such as nitrogen, inert air, process and drinking water, steam,
and waste treatment) that are requested by the prospective acquirer
for use in conjunction with the assets and businesses sold to the
acquirer; and

4. if the II A 2 properties are divested, provide the acquirer, at fair
market prices, supply arrangements for terephthalic acid and dimeth-
yl-terephthalate that are requested by the prospective acquirer for
use in conjunction with the assets and businesses divested to the
acquirer.

(Hereinafter referred to as “II B agreements”.)
(C) Hoechst and Celanese shall:

1. retain all liabilities arising from the operation of any of the IT A
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properties that are divested through and including, but not following,
the date of closing of the sale of such properties; [13]

2. ensure that all persons who accept employment with any acquir-
er of the IT A 1 properties shall become fully vested in their account
balances under Celanese’s Stock Bonus and Investment Plan Trust;

3. transfer from Celanese’s pension plan if the II A 1 properties are
divested, or from Hoechst’s pension plan if the II A 2 properties are
divested, to a pension fund(s) to be established by an acquirer or
acquirers of those properties assets equal to the actuarially accrued
liability as of the closing date, or otherwise secure the accrued pension
benefits, with respect to Celanese, or, as the case may be, Hoechst,
employees who accept employment with an acquirer or acquirers of
any II A property; and

4. encourage its employees who are employed at any divested IT A
property to accept employment with any acquirer(s) of any II A prop-
erty.

(D) Hoechst and Celanese shall maintain the viability and marketa-
bility of the assets required to be divested and shall not cause or
permit the destruction, removal or impairment of any assets or busi-
nesses to be divested except in the ordinary course of business and
except for ordinary wear and tear. [14]

(E)II A 1orII A 2 properties shall be divested to and II B agree-
ments and agreements provided for in paragraph II (A) made with, an
acquirer or acquirers, and only in a manner, that receives the prior
approval of the Commission. The purpose of the divestiture and agree-
ments is to ensure the continuation of the assets as ongoing, viable
enterprises engaged in the manufacture, distribution, sale, research
and development of polyester staple and textile filament fibers in the
United States and to remedy the lessening of competition resulting
from the Acquisition as alleged in the Commission’s complaint.

(F) If Hoechst has not divested the II A 1 or I A 2 properties within
the twelve-month period specified in II (A), Hoechst shall consent to
the appointment of a trustee by the Commission to divest the IT A 1
properties. In the event that the Commission brings an action pursu-
ant to Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C.
45(1), or any other statute enforced by the Commission, Hoechst shall
consent to the appointment of a trustee in such action. The appoint-
ment of a trustee shall not preclude the Commission from seeking
civil penalties and other relief available to it for any failure by Ho-
echst to comply with paragraphs II (C) through VI of this order.

(G) If a trustee is appointed by the Commission or a court pursuant
to paragraph II (F) of this order, Hoechst shall [15] consent to the
following terms and conditions regarding the trustee’s duties and
responsibilities:
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1. The Commission shall select the trustee, subject to Hoechst’s
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The trustee shall
be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions and divesti-
tures.

2. The trustee shall have the power and authority to divest any II
A 1 properties or enter into any II B agreements and other agree-
ments provided for in paragraph II (A) that have not been divested or
entered into by Hoechst within the time period for divestiture in
paragraph II(A). The trustee shall have 18 months from the date of
appointment to accomplish the divestiture, which shall be subject to
the prior approval of the Commission and, if the trustee is appointed
by a court, subject also to the prior approval of the court. If, however,
at the end of the eighteen-month period the trustee has submitted a
plan of divestiture or believes that divestiture can be achieved within
a reasonable time, the divestiture period may be extended by the
Commission or by the court for a court-appointed trustee. Provided,
however, the Commission or the court for a court-appointed [16] trust-
ee may only extend the divestiture period two times.

3. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the personnel,
books, records and facilities of any business that the trustee has the
duty to divest, and Hoechst shall develop such financial or other
information relevant to the assets to be divested as such trustee may
reasonably request. Hoechst shall cooperate with the trustee, and
shall take no action to interfere with or impede the trustee’s accom-
plishment of the divestiture.

4. The power and authority of the trustee to divest shall be at the
most favorable price and terms available consistent with the order’s
absolute and unconditional obligation to divest and the purposes of
the divestiture as stated in paragraph II(E).

5. The trustee shall serve at the cost and expense of Hoechst on such
reasonable and customary terms and conditions as the Commission or
a court may set. The trustee shall account for all monies derived from
the sale and all expenses incurred. After approval by the Commission
or the court of the account of the trustee, including fees for his or her
services, all remaining monies shall be paid to [17] Hoechst and the
trustee’s power shall be terminated. The trustee’s compensation shall
be based at least in significant part on a commission arrangement
contingent on the trustee divesting the trust property.

6. Promptly upon appointment of the trustee and subject to the
approval of the Commission, Hoechst shall, subject to the Commis-
sion’s prior approval, and consistent with provisions of this order,
execute a trust agreement that transfers to the trustee all rights and
powers necessary to permit the trustee to cause divestiture and sign
agreements.
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7. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, a substitute
trustee shall be appointed.

8. The trustee shall report in writing to the Commission and Ho-
echst every sixty days concerning the trustee’s efforts to accomplish
divestiture.

(H) The Agreement to Hold Separate, attached hereto and made a
part hereof as Appendix 1, shall continue in effect until such time as
(1) all the IT A 1 properties, except Type 30 POY spinning machines
at Greenville, have been divested by Hoechst or [18] a trustee pursu-
ant to this order, or (2) all of the IT A 2 properties have been divested
by Hoechst pursuant to the order.

II1.

It is further ordered, That, within sixty days after the date of service
of this order, and every sixty days thereafter until Hoechst and Cela-
nese have fully complied with the provisions of paragraph II of this
order, Hoechst and Celanese shall submit to the Commission a veri-
fied written report setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which they intend to comply, are complying with, or have complied
with that provision and those reports shall be accorded such confiden-
tial treatment as is available pursuant to Section 6(f) and 21 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended. Hoechst and Celanese
shall include in compliance reports, among other things that are
required from time to time, a full description of contacts or negotia-
tions for the divestiture of the paragraph II A properties, including
the identity of all parties contacted. Hoechst and Celanese also shall
include in compliance reports copies of all written communications to
and from such parties, and all internal memoranda, reports and
recommendations concerning divestiture. [19]

Iv.

It is further ordered, That for a period commencing on the date of
service of this order and continuing for ten years from and after the
date of service of this order, Hoechst shall cease and desist from
acquiring, without the prior approval of the Federal Trade Commis-
sion, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries or otherwise, assets
used or previously used in (and still suitable for use in), or any interest
in, or the whole or any part of the stock or share capital of, any
company engaged in, the manufacture, distribution, or sale of polyes-
ter staple and textile filament fibers in the United States. Provided,
however, that these prohibitions shall not relate (i) to the construction
of new facilities, (ii) to the acquisition of assets outside of the United
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States, (iii) to the acquisition of any interest in, or the whole or part
of the stock or share capital of any company engaged in the manufac-
ture, distribution or sale of polyester staple and textile filament fibers
outside of the United States if such company has annual sales in the
United States of less than one percent of the then current respective
total United States annual sales of polyester staple fibers or polyester
textile filament fibers or (iv) to the acquisition of used assets that
Hoechst intends to relocate to existing or new facilities for use in
production of polyester staple and textile filament fibers if such used
assets have production capacity of less than one percent of the United
States’ then current respective capacity for the production of polyes-
ter staple fibers [20] or polyester textile filament fibers.

One year from the date of service of this order and annually there-
after, Hoechst shall file with the Commission a verified written report
of its compliance with this paragraph.

V.

For the purposes of determining or securing compliance with this
order, and subject to any legally recognized privilege, upon written
request and on reasonable notice to American Hoechst Corporation or
Celanese made to their principal offices, Hoechst and Celanese shall
permit any duly authorized representatives of the Commission:

1. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to
inspect and copy all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence, memo-
randa and other records and documents in the possession or under the
control of Hoechst or Celanese relating to any matters contained in
this order; and

2. Upon five days’ notice to American Hoechst Corporation or Cela-
nese and without restraint or intereference from them, to interview
officers or employees of Hoechst or Celanese, who may have counsel
present, regarding such matters. [21]

VL

It is further ordered, That Hoechst and Celanese shall notify the
Commission at least thirty days prior to any change in the corporation
such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of
a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or
any other change that may affect compliance obligations arising out
of this order.

Chairman Oliver was recorded as voting in the negative.
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DISSENTING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN DANIEL OLIVER

Two separate concerns lead me to dissent from final Commission
acceptance of the consent order in this matter. First, I do not believe
that Hoechst’s acquisition of Celanese is likely to lessen competition
substantially in the production, distribution or sale of either polyester
staple or textile polyester filament, the two relevant product markets
alleged in the complaint. The theory of the complaint is that the
acquisition—if not modified pursuant to the consent order—may have
this effect in the United States. However, strong competition from
foreign producers is likely to make it impossible for domestic produc-
ers—including the combined Hoechst-Celanese operation—to exer-
cise any significant degree of market power, whether to raise prices
above competitive levels or to injure competition in any other respect.
There is therefore no reason to believe that the acquisition violates
section 7 of the Clayton Act, and the consent order is unnecessary.

Second, the consent order will require the respondent—for ten
years—to secure Commission approval prior to acquiring virtually
any assets located in the United States that are used to manufacture,
distribute, or sell polyester staple or textile filament fibers. If, as I
have concluded, there is no reason to believe that the current acquisi-
tion would violate section 7, then there is no reason to require prior
approval of future equally innocuous acquisitions. The Commission
has recently determined that the appropriateness of prior approval
provisions depends on “industry market structure and market condi-
tions.”1 The record in this case does not establish that “market condi-
tions and market structure in [the covered markets] are such that all
such acquisitions . . . necessarily [would be] anticompetitive.”2

For both reasons, I therefore respectfully dissent from final approv-
al of the consent order in this matter.

ml International, 104 FTC 1, 224 (1984); accord, Hospital Corp. of America, 106 FTC 361, 514

(1985), aff'd, 807 F.2d 1381 (7th Cir. 1986), cert. denied, . U.S. __, No. 86-1492 (May 3, 1987).
2 See American Medical International, 104 FTC at 225; see also Hospital Corp. of America, 106 FTC at 513-17.
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IN THE MATTER OF
L’AIR LIQUIDE SOCIETE ANONYME, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC. 7 OF
THE CLAYTON ACT & SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3216. Complaint, July 15, 1987—Decision, July 15, 1987

This consent order requires, among other things, L’Air Liquide to divest some assets
to resolve any antitrust concerns in the production and sale of liquid gases and to
obtain prior Commission’s approval for similar acquisitions.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ernest A. Nagata.

For the respondents: Robert A. Lipstein, Coudeot Brothers, Wash-
ington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that I’Air
Liquide Societe Anonyme pour L’Etude et L’Exploitation des Pro-
cedes Georges Claude has undertaken an acquisition of the voting
securities of Big Three Industries, and a proposed merger of Big Three
Industries with a subsidiary of L’Air Liquide Societe Anonyme pour
L’Etude et L’Exploitation des Procedes Georges Claude, either of
which, if consummated, would result in a violation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45, and that a proceed-
ing in respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues
its complaint pursuant to Section 11 of the Clayton Act, as amended,
15 U.S.C. 21 and Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended 15 U.S.C. 45(b), stating its charges as follows:

I. DEFINITIONS

1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following definitions shall
apply:

(a) “L’Air Liquide” means L’Air Liquide Societe Anonyme pour
L’Etude et L’Exploitation des Procedes Georges Claude, its officers,
directors, agents, representatives, employees, successors and assigns

together with all subsidiaries it controls.
(b) “BTI” means Big Three Industries, its officers, directors, agents,



20 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 110 F.T.C.

representatives, employees, successors and assigns together with all
subsidiaries it controls.

(c) "Acquisition” means L’Air Liquide’s acquisition of the voting
securities of BTI.

(d) “Merger” means the proposed merger of BTI with a subsidiary
of L’Air Liquide.

(e) "Air separation gases” means oxygen, nitrogen, and argon in
gaseous or liquid form.

() “Merchant” oxygen, nitrogen, or argon means any such gas sold
in liquid form or packaged in cylinders.

II. L’AIR LIQUIDE

2. L’Air Liquide is a corporation organized and doing business
under the laws of France, with its principal office at 75 Quai d’Orsay,
Paris 75321 France.

3. L’Air Liquide is an 88% stockholder in Liquid Air Corporation
(*LAC”), a corporation organized and doing business under the laws
of Delaware, with its principal office at California Plaza, 2121 North
California Blvd., Walnut Creek, California.

4. For the year ending December 31, 1985, L’Air Liquide’s total net
sales were $2.8 billion, and its total assets amounted to approximately
$3 billion.

5. L’Air Liquide does business in four areas: industrial gases; weld-
ing and cutting; engineering and construction; and chemicals and
related activities.

6. L’Air Liquide, at all times relevant herein, has been and is now
engaged in commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose
business is in or affecting commerce as “commerce” is defined in
Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
44.

III. BTI

7. BTI is a corporation organized and doing business under the laws
of Texas, with its office and principal place of business located at 3535
West 12th Street, Houston, Texas.

8. 1In 1985, BTT’s net sales totalled $384 million, and its total assets
were approximately $1 billion.

9. BTI has worldwide operations in three product areas: industrial
gas; oil field related tools, equipment and services; and welding equip-
ment and supplies.

10. BTI, at all times relevant herein, has been and is now engaged
in commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose business is in
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or affecting commerce as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

IV. THE ACQUISITION AND MERGER

11. Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 12,
1986, L’Air Liquide has offered to purchase all outstanding shares of
capital stock in BTI for $29.00 per share. The parties have agreed,
upon completion of the tender offer, to merge L’Air Liquide’s wholly
owned subsidiary, AAL Acquisition Corp., into and with BTIL The
total value of the tender offer and merger is approximately $1.2 bil-
lion.

V. TRADE AND COMMERCE

12. Relevant lines of commerce in which to evaluate the effects of
the acquisition and merger are the production and sale of:

(a) merchant argon; and

(b) merchant oxygen and nitrogen. :

13. The United States is a relevant area in which to evaluate the
effects of the acquisition and merger in the production and sale of
merchant argon.

14. Relevant sections of the United States in which to evaluate the
effects of the acquisition and merger on the production and sale of
merchant oxygen and nitrogen are:

(a) the Southern Rocky Mountain region;

(b) West Texas;

(c) North Texas;

(d) South Texas; and

(e) Florida.

15. The production of merchant argon in the national market is
highly concentrated. In terms of production, the Herfindahl-Hirsch-
man Index (“HHI”) for 1985 in the national merchant argon market
was approximately 2500 and would increase approximately 125
points to approximately 2625 as a result of the acquisition and merg-
er.

16. L’Air Liquide and BTI both are actual competitors in the pro-
duction and sale of merchant argon in the national market.

17. The productive capacity of merchant oxygen and nitrogen in
each relevant section of the country is highly concentrated. In terms
of capacity, the HHI for 1985 in the:

(a) Southern Rocky Mountain merchant oxygen and nitrogen mar-
ket was approximately 2850 and would increase approximately 1050
points to approximately 3900 as a result of the acquisition and merg-
er;
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(b) West Texas merchant oxygen and nitrogen market was approxi-
mately 2150 and would increase approximately 1300 points to approx-
imately 3450 as a result of the acquisition and merger;

(c) North Texas merchant oxygen and nitrogen market was approxi-
mately 2350 and would increase approximately 700 points to approxi-
mately -:3050 as a result of the acquisition and merger;

(d) South Texas merchant oxygen and nitrogen market was approxi-
mately 3000 and would increase approximately 450 points to approxi-
mately 3450 as a result of the acquisition and merger; and :

(e) Florida merchant oxygen and nitrogen market was approxi-
mately 2600 and would increase approximately 900 points to approxi-
mately 3500 as a result of the acquisition and merger.

18. L’Air Liquide and BTI both are actual competitors in the pro-
duction, distribution and sale of merchant oxygen and nitrogen in
each relevant section of the country.

19. The barriers to entry into the production and sale of merchant
oxygen, nitrogen and argon in the relevant sections of the country are
significant. Impediments to entry arise from sunk costs, minimum
efficient scale plant size, demand elasticity and market size. These
factors operate together to create a situation where rapid, new entry
may not be available to restrain anticompetitive activity.

VI. EFFECTS

20. The effect of the proposed acquisition and merger may be sub-
stantially to lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in the
production and sale of merchant oxygen, nitrogen, and argon in the
relevant sections of the country in the following ways, among others:

(a) actual competition between L’Air Liquide and BTI in the rele-
vant lines of commerce and relevant sections of the country will be
eliminated;

(b) actual competition between competitors in the relevant lines of
commerce and relevant sections of the country will be lessened;

(c) concentration in the relevant lines of commerce and relevant
sections of the country will be significantly increased; and

(d) the possibility of collusion or interdependent coordination
among the remaining firms in the relevant lines of commerce and
relevant sections of the country will be enhanced.

VII. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

21. The effect of the acquisition and merger may be substantially
to lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in the production
and sale of merchant argon in the United States market and in the
production and sale of merchant oxygen and nitrogen in the Southern
Rocky Mountain region, West Texas, North Texas, South Texas and
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Florida markets in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amend-
ed, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45.

DecisioN aAND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Competition
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Sec-
tion 7 of the Clayton Act; and

The respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission hav-
ing thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an
admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in
the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and hav-
ing determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent has
violated the said Acts, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, and having duly considered the com-
ments filed thereafter by interested persons pursuant to Section 2.34
of its Rules, now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed
in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its com-
plaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters the
following order:

1. Respondent L’Air Liquide Societe Anonyme pour L’Etude et
L’Exploitation des Procedes Georges Claude (“L’Air Liquide”) is a
corporation organized, existing and doing business under and by vir-
tue of the laws of France, with its principal office located at 75 Quai
d’Orsay, Paris 75321 France.

L’Air Liquide is an 88% stockholder in Liquid Air Corporation
(“LAC”), a corporation organized and doing business under the laws
of Delaware, with its principal office at California Plaza, 2121 North
California Blvd., Walnut Creek, California. '

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
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matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceedings
is in the public interest.

ORDER

L

It is hereby ordered, That as used in this order the following defini-
tions shall apply:

1. "L’Air Liquide” means I’Air Liquide Societe Anonyme pour
L’Etude et L’Exploitation des Procedes Georges Claude, its officers,
directors, agents, representatives, employees, successors, and assigns
together with all subsidiaries it controls.

2. "Liquid Air” means Liquid Air Corporation, its officers, direc-
tors, agents, representatives, employees, successors, and assigns to-
gether with all subsidiaries it controls.

3. "Big Three” means Big Three Industries Inc., its officers, direc-
tors, agents, representatives, employees, successors, and assigns to-
gether with all subsidiaries it controls.

4. "Air separation gases’”’ means oxygen, nitrogen and argon in
gaseous or liquid form.

5. "Air separation gases plant” means a facility that produces air
separation gases.

6. "Merchant air separation gases” means oxygen, nitrogen and
argon sold in liquid form or packaged in cylinders.

7. “Merchant air separation gases producer’” means any person that
is engaged in all of the following: (i) production, (ii) distribution and
(iii) sale of two or more merchant air separation gases.

8. "Nerth Texas” means that portion of the State of Texas within
a 200 mile radius of Dallas, Texas, but does not include customers
currently served by Liquid Air’s Stafford or Odessa air separation
gases plants.

9. “Merchant Divestiture Assets” means the assets described in
paragraphs ITA and IIB of this order.

10. “Material confidential information” means competitively sensi-
tive or proprietary information not independently known to L’Air
Liquide and includes, but is not limited to, customer lists and price
lists.

II.

It is further ordered, That.:
A. Within 9 months from the date this order becomes final L’Air
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Liquide shall divest or shall cause to be divested, absolutely and in
good faith, all of its right, title and interest in the following properties.
Divestiture shall be made only to a buyer or buyers, and only in a
manner, that receives the prior approval of the Commission. The
purpose of the divestiture is to ensure the continuation of the assets
as ongoing, viable enterprises engaged in the same businesses and to
remedy the lessening of competition resulting from the acquisition as
alleged in the Commission’s complaint in this matter.

1. All of Liquid Air’s existing merchant air separation gases custom-
er, dealer and distributor contracts; excluding any contracts with
Texas Instruments, specifying a delivery location in the state of Tex-
as, together with associated storage vessels and cylinders;

2. Liquid Air’s air separation gases plants located in Odessa, Texas
and Stafford (Houston), Texas, together with associated distribution
equipment, and distribution equipment sufficient to serve Liquid
Air’s merchant air separation gases customers located in North Tex-
as;

3. Big Three’s West Palm Beach, Florida air separation gases plant
together with all associated distribution equipment, customer, dealer
and distributor contracts, and associated storage vessels and cylin-
ders; '

4. Big Three’s Albuquerque, New Mexico air separation gases plant,
together with all associated distribution equipment, customer, dealer
and distributor contracts, and associated storage vessels and cylin-
ders;

5. Big Three’s interest in the Palmer, Alaska air separation gases
plant and associated merchant air separation gases customer, dealer
and distributor contracts, storage vessels and distribution equipment.
Provided, however, that if the aforementioned interest is divested to
The Lincoln Electric Company, such divestiture will not require the
prior approval of the Commissioner under this order.

B. L’Air Liquide shall also make available in North Texas for a
period of up to 3 years from the date the divestiture of Liquid Air’s
existing merchant air separation gases customer, dealer and distribu-
tor contracts in North Texas is completed whether by L’Air Liquide
or by the trustee identified in paragraph V, up to 50 T/D of liquid
oxygen and 95 T/D of liquid nitrogen, which may be purchased by the
acquirer of the merchant air separation gases customer, dealer and
distributor contracts of Liquid Air in North Texas at a price equal to
the electric power costs of the supplying air separation gases plant
plus 5 cents/hundred cubic feet, F.O.B. the supplying plant.

C. Within 12 months from the date this order becomes final, L’Air
Liquide shall enter into a contract to sell to an unrelated third party
all argon to which Liquid Air is entitled under an Operating Agree-
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ment among Borden, Inc., BASF Wyandotte Corporation, Liquid Air
Corporation and LAI Properties, Inc., dated December 14, 1984, as
amended. Such contract shall be made only with a buyer or buyers,
and only in a manner, that receives the prior approval of the Commis-
sion. The purpose of requiring such contract is to remedy the lessen-
ing of competition resulting from the acquisition as alleged in the
Commission’s complaint in this matter.

III.

It is further ordered, That, pending the divestiture of all of the
assets described in paragraphs ITA and IIB, above, L’Air Liquide will
hold such assets separate and apart on the following terms and condi-
tions:

A. Within 30 days from the date this order becomes final, L’Air
Liquide shall cause all of its right, title and interest in the Merchant
Divestiture Assets to be transferred to a separate corporation (“Nu-
corp”), whose management and directors will be independent of and
separate from the management and directors of L’Air Liquide, Liquid
Air, or Big Three.

B. Nucorp and the Merchant Divestiture Assets shall be operated
independently of L’Air Liquide, Liquid Air or Big Three.

C. L’Air Liquide shall not exercise direction or control over, or
influence directly or indirectly, the day-to-day operations of Nucorp
or the Merchant Divestiture Assets, except as may be necessary (i) to
assure compliance with this Order, (ii) to prevent an event of default
under financing arrangements to which L’Air Liquide or any of its
subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) to prevent wasting or deterioration of
the Merchant Divestiture Assets.

D. Except as provided in paragraph III(C)(i)-(iii) or as required by
law and except to the extent that necessary information is exchanged
in the course of defending litigation or negotiating agreements to
dispose of Nucorp or all or any part of the Merchant Divestiture
Assets, L’ Air Liquide shall not receive or have access to, or the use of,
any “material confidential information” relating to the Merchant
Divestiture Assets not in the public domain. Any such information
that is obtained pursuant to this subparagraph shall only be used for
the purposes set out in this subparagraph.

E. Each transaction in the amount of $100,000 or more, or transac-
tions in the aggregate of $500,000 or more which are not otherwise
precluded to Nucorp by paragraph III(A)-(D), shall be subject to a
majority vote of the Board of Nucorp. Prior to the Board of Nucorp
approving any such transaction, such transaction must be submitted
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for review and approval by an officer of L’Air Liquide only for the
limited purpose of determining whether such transaction would im-
pair L’Air Liquide’s obligations under this order, including L’Air Lig-
uide’s ability to divest Nucorp or the Merchant Divestiture Assets, or
would create an event of default under any financing arrangement.
The submission of such proposed transactions to an executive of L’Air
Liquide shall be made in writing only, and L’Air Liquide’s response
shall also be in writing only, and copies of all such writings shall be
maintained by L’Air Liquide for two years following the divestiture
of the Merchant Divestiture Assets. The approval of an officer of L’Air
Liquide shall not be unreasonably withheld and shall be granted
within a reasonable period of time.
F. Subject to the other provisions of this order:

1. L’Air Liquide shall have the sole right to determine the terms of
sale of Nucorp or any of the Merchant Divestiture Assets, including
timing of sale and purchase price, and to cause Nucorp management
to enter into any agreements or arrangements, or to take any other
action, to fulfill L’Air Liquide’s obligations under this order, and

2. In the event L’Air Liquide has submitted one or more acquirers
of the Merchant Divestiture Assets or of Nucorp to the Commission
prior to the date this order becomes final, L’Air Liquide will not be
required to cause those assets for which it has a contract or contracts
to sell to be transferred to Nucorp, unless and until the Commission
denies approval of such acquirers. If the Commission denies such
approval, L’Air Liquide shall transfer the Merchant Divestiture As-
sets to Nucorp (a) within ten (10) calendar days, or (b) if L’Air Liquide
has not as yet transferred assets to Nucorp pursuant to paragraph
III(A), then L’Air Liquide shall be required to transfer the Merchant
Divestiture Assets described in this subparagraph in accordance with
paragraph ITI(A).

V.

It is further ordered, That L’Air Liquide shall not cause or permit
the wasting or deterioration of the assets and operations to be divest-
ed in accordance with paragraph II of this order in any manner that
impairs the marketability of any such assets and operations or im-
pairs in any manner the viability of the assets and operations as a
going concern engaged in the production, sale or distribution of indus-
trial gases. Provided, however, that deterioration in the ordinary
course of operation and normal wear is not a violation of this para-
graph.
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It is further ordered, That:

A. If I’Air Liquide has not divested all of the Merchant Divestiture
Assets within the 9-month period, or has not obtained approval for the
contract described in paragraph II(C) within the 12 month period,
L’Air Liquide shall consent to the appointment of a trustee in any
action that the Federal Trade Commission may bring pursuant to
Section 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45 (1), or
any other statute enforced by the Commission. In the event the court
declines to appoint a trustee, L’Air Liquide shall consent to the ap-
pointment of a trustee by the Commission pursuant to the order.

B. If a trustee is appointed by a court or the Commission pursuant
to paragraph V(A) of the order, L’Air Liquide shall consent to the:
following terms and conditions regarding the trustee’s duties and
responsibilities:

1. The Commission shall select the trustee, subject to L’Air Liqui-
de’s consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The trustee
shall be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions and
divestitures.

2. The trustee shall have 18 months from the date of appointment
to submit for prior approval the divestiture of any undivested assets,
which shall be subject to the prior approval of the Commission, and
if the trustee was appointed by the court, subject also to the prior
approval of the court. If, however, at the end of the 18-month period
the trustee has submitted a plan of divestiture or believes that divesti-
ture can be achieved within a reasonable time, the divestiture period
may be extended by the Commission or by the court, if the trustee was
appointed by a court.

3. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the personnel,
books, records, and facilities relating to any undivested assets and
Nucorp or L’Air Liquide shall develop such financial or other infor-
mation relevant to the assets to be divested as such trustee may
reasonably request. Nucorp and L’Air Liquide shall cooperate with
the trustee and shall take no action to interfere with or impede the
trustee’s accomplishment of the divestiture.

4. The power and authority of the trustee to divest shall be at the
most favorable price and terms available consistent with the order’s
absolute and unconditional obligation to divest.

5. The trustee shall serve at the cost and expense of L’Air Liquide
on such reasonable and customary terms and conditions as the Com-
mission or a court may set. The trustee shall account for all monies
derived from asset sales and all expenses incurred. After approval by
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the court or the Commission of the account of the trustee, including
fees for his or her services, all remaining monies shall be paid to L’Air
Liquide and the trustee’s power shall be terminated. The trustee’s
compensation shall be based at least in significant part on a commis-
sion arrangement contingent on the trustee divesting undivested as-
sets.

6. Promptly upon appointment of the trustee, L’Air Liquide shall,
subject to the Commission’s prior approval and consistent with provi-
sions of this order, execute a trust agreement that transfers to the
trustee all rights and powers necessary to permit the trustee to cause
divestiture of undivested assets.

7. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, the court or
the Commission may, upon its own motion or by motion of L’Air
Liquide, appoint a substitute trustee for the balance of the 18-month
period specified in paragraph V(B)(2) or any extension thereof.

8. The trustee shall report in writing to L’Air Liquide and the
Commission every sixty (60) days concerning the trustee’s efforts to
accomplish divestiture.

9. The trustee shall be authorized to retain independent legal coun-
sel and other persons for purposes of discharging the functions set
forth above. L’Air Liquide shall reimburse the trustee for the reason-
able value of all expenses so incurred.

10. If L’Air Liquide and the trustee are unable to resolve a dispute
regarding the reasonable value of his/her services or the reasonable-
ness of an expenditure or obligation incurred by the trustee in connec-
tion with his/her efforts to divest the plant or plants, then L’Air
Liquide and the trustee shall submit the dispute to the Commission -
for resolution. The trust agreement shall recite that the Commission’s
determination of the reasonable value of the trustee’s services or the
reasonableness of expenditures and other obligations incurred by the
trustee shall be binding upon L’Air Liquide and the trustee.

VL

It is further ordered, That, within sixty (60) days after the date this
order becomes final and every sixty (60) days thereafter until L’Air
Liquide has fully complied with the provisions of paragraphs II(A)-
II(C) of this order, L’Air Liquide shall submit to the Commission a
verified written report setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which it intends to comply, is complying or has complied with those
provisions. L’Air Liquide shall include in compliance reports, among
other things that are required from time to time, a full description of
contacts or negotiations for divestiture, including the identity of all
parties contacted. ’
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It is further ordered, That for a period commencing on the date this
order becomes final and continuing for ten (10) years from and after
the date this order becomes final, L’Air Liquide shall cease and desist
from acquiring, without the prior approval of the Federal Trade Com-
mission, directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries or otherwise, the
whole or any part of the stock or share capital of any United States
merchant air separation gases producer, or any of the merchant air
separation gases assets of any United States merchant air separation
gases producer, provided, however, that nothing in this order shall
require L’Air Liquide to obtain prior Commission approval for acqui-
sitions of (a) gas or any product for resale, (b) transportation, delivery
or storage equipment, (c) cylinders, (d) converters, (e) bulk customer
stations, or (f) plant equipment not incorporated in an operating mer-
chant air separation gases plant, and provided further that nothing
in this order or in the Commission’s order entered in Docket C-2990
shall require L’Air Liquide to obtain prior Commission approval if
L’Air Liquide increases its ownership in Liquid Air or causes Big
Three to acquire Liquid Air. One year after the date this order
becomes final, and annually thereafter, I’Air Liquide shall file with
the Commission a verified written report of its compliance with this
paragraph.

VIIL

It is further ordered, That for the purpose of determining or secur-
ing compliance with this order, and subject to any legally recognized
privilege, upon written request and on reasonable notice to L’Air
Liquide made to its principal office, L’Air Liquide shall permit any
duly authorized representatives of the Commission access, during
office hours and in the presence of counsel, to inspect and copy all
books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence, memoranda and other
records and documents in the possession or under the control of L’Air
Liquide relating to any matters contained in this order.

IX.

It is further ordered, That L’Air Liquide shall notify the Commis-
sion at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the
corporation such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change that may affect compliance obliga-
tions arising out of the order.
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DISSENTING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN DANIEL OLIVER

I would support a consent order in this matter that required the
respondent—for a prescribed period of years—to furnish prior notice
to the Commission before making additional acquisitions in the mar-
kets at issue. Unfortunately, the consent order the Commission has
accepted requires the respondent—for ten years—to secure prior
Commission approval before making acquisitions in those markets.
The Commission has recently determined that the appropriateness of
prior approval provisions depends on “industry market structure and
market conditions.”! I do not support imposing the prior approval
requirement in the consent order because it is not clear from the
record that “market conditions and market structure in [the covered
markets] are such that all such acquisitions . . . necessarily [would be]
anticompetitive.”2 I therefore respectfully dissent from final accept-
ance of the consent order in this matter.

! American Medical International, 104 FTC, 1, 224 (1984); accord, Hospital Corp. of America, 106 FTC 361, 514 )
(1985), aff'd, 807 F.2d 1381 (7th Cir. 1986), cert. denied, _ U.S. __, No. 86-1492 (May 3, 1987).
2 See American Medical International, 104 FTC at 225; see also Hospital Corp. of America, 106 FTC at 513-17.
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IN THE MATTER OF
TICOR TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC. 5 OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9190. Complaint, Jan. 7, 1985—Decision, July 30, 1987

This consent order prohibits, among other things, Santa Ana, Calif.-based respondent,
First American Title Insurance Co., from setting any rates for title search and
examination and settlement services through any rating bureau in six states.
Additionally, First American Title Insurance Co. agreed to withdraw from the law
suit filed by the title insurance companies named in the 1985 complaint and
requires the respondent to notify the Commission at least thirty days prior to any
changes in the corporate respondent.

Appearances

For the Commission: Michael Antalics.

For the respondents: Paul J. Laveroni, Frank D. Tatum, & Karen
J. Kubin, Cooley, Godward, Castro, Huddleson & Tatum, San Francis-
co, Calif.

CoMPLAINT*

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended (15 U.S.C. 41 et seq. ), and by virtue of the authority vested
in it by said Act, the Federal Trade Commission, having reason to
believe that the respondents named in the caption hereof have violat-
ed the provisions of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues this complaint, stating its charges as follows:

DEFINITIONS

ParacraprH 1. The following definitions shall apply in this com-
plaint:

a. "Title search and examination services” means all activities
which are designed to identify and describe the ownership of a par-
ticular parcel of real property as well as any other actual or potential
rights to, encumbrances on, or interests in the property.

b. “Settlement services’” means those services related to the closing

* The Decision and Order following this Complaint applies to respondent First American Title Insurance Compa-
ny only. The Complaint against the other named respondents remain in litigation.
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of a real estate transaction, including but not limited to those services
performed in connection with or in supervision of the execution, deliv-
ery or recording of transfer and lien documents, or the disbursement
of funds.

RESPONDENTS

PaAR. 2. Respondent Ticor Title Insurance Company is a corporation
organized under the laws of the State of California, with its principal
place of business at 6300 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California.

PaAr. 3. Respondent Chicago Title Insurance Company is a corpora-
tion organized under the laws of the State of Missouri, with its princi-
pal place of business at 111 W. Washington Street, Chicago, Illinois.

PARr. 4. Respondent Safeco Title Insurance Company is a corpora-
tion organized under the laws of the State of California, with its
principal place of business at 13640 Roscoe Boulevard, Los Angeles,
California.

PaRr. 5. Respondent First American Title Insurance Company is a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of California, with
its principal place of business at 114 East 5th Street, Santa Ana,
California.

Par. 6. Respondent Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation is a corpo-
ration organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia,
with its principal place of business at 6630 West Broad Street, Rich-
mond, Virginia.

Par. 7. Respondent Stewart Title Guaranty Company is a corpora-
tion organized under the laws of the State of Texas, with its principal
offices at Stewart Building, Galveston, Texas.

J URISDICTION

PAR. 8. Respondents maintain, and have maintained, a substantial
course of business, including the acts and practices as hereinafter set
forth, which are in or affect commerce within the meaning of the
Federal Trade Commission Act.

Pagr. 9. Title search and examination services do not constitute the
“business of insurance” within the meaning of the McCarran-Fergu-
son Act, 15 U.S.C. 1012(b).

Pagr. 10. Settlement services do not constitute the “business of in-
surance” within the meaning of the McCarran-Ferguson Act, 15
U.S.C. 1012(b).

ANTICOMPETITIVE ACTS AND PRACTICES

Par. 11. Respondents have agreed on the prices to be charged for
title search and examination services or settlement services through
rating bureaus in various states. Examples of states in which one or



34 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Decision and Order 110 F.T.C.

more of the respondents have fixed prices with other respondents or
other competitors for all or part of their search and examination
services or settlement services are Arizona, Connecticut, Idaho, Loui-
siana, Montana, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Ohio, Oregon,
Pennsylvania, Wisconsin and Wyoming.

ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFECTS

PaRr. 12. As a result of the aforesaid acts and practices, competition
in the sale of title search and examination services or settlement
services has been restrained in various states.

PAR. 13. The aforesaid acts and practices therefore constitute unfair
methods of competition in or affecting commerce in violation of Sec-
tion 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

DecisioN AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore issued its complaint charging
the respondent First American Title Insurance Company with viola-
tion of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended,
and respondent having been served with a copy of the complaint,
together with a notice of contemplated relief; and

The respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission hav-
ing thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an
admission by respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for settle-
ment purposes only and does not constitute an admission by respond-
ent that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint, and
waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules;
and

The Secretary of the Commission having thereafter withdrawn this
matter from adjudication as to respondent First American Title In-
surance Company in accordance with Section 3.25(c) of its Rules; and

The Commission having considered the matter and having there-
upon accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such
agreement on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in
further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 3.25(f) of
its Rules, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent First American Title Insurance Company is a corpo-
ration organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of
the laws of the State of California, with its office and principal place
of business located at 114 East 5th Street, Santa Ana, California.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
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matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER
L

For purposes of this order, the following definition shall apply:
“Affected States” means the states of Arizona, Connecticut, Idaho,
Montana, Ohio and Wisconsin.

II.

It is ordered, That respondent, its successors and assigns, and its
officers, representatives, and employees, directly or indirectly,
through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device shall not
discuss, propose, set, or file any rates for title search and examination
services or settlement services through any rating bureau in any of
the Affected States, unless respondent can establish that such state
has clearly articulated and affirmatively expressed a policy permit-
ting collective rate filing through rating bureaus, and actively super-
vises this conduct.

III.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall within thirty days after
service of this order deliver a copy of this order to all its present
officers, directors, and personnel having any responsibility in deter-
mining rates as well as to the commissioner of insurance in each of
the Affected States.

IR

It is further ordered, That respondent notify the Commission at
least thirty days prior to any change in the corporate respondent such
as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or
any other change in the corporation which may affect compliance
obligations arising out of this order.

V.

It is further ordered, That respondent shall, within ninety days
after the order becomes final, file with the Commission a report, in
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writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it has
complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF
BUCKINGHAM PRODUCTIONS, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SECS. 5 &
12 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9194. Amended Complaint, July 30, 1987—Decision, July 30, 1987

This consent order requires, among other things, the Furlong, Pa. marketers of mail-
order weight reduction or weight control products, programs or services to cease
falsely representing the effectiveness of its programs, products or services without
competent and reliable evidence supporting such claims.

Appearances

For the Commission: Michael Dershowitz.

For the respondents: John J. Hare, Jr., Buckingham Commons,
Furlong, PA.

AMENDED COMPLAINT*

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Buck-
ingham Productions, Inc., trading and doing business as Rotation Diet
Center; Furlong-Elliot Corp.; Freedom Center, Inc.; Plaza Business
Services, Inc.; N.F. Rotation, Inc.; Rotation-Freedom Diet, Inc., Health
and Diet Corp., Inc., corporations; Howard Elliot, individually and as
an officer of said corporations, (“respondents”); and Dr. Barry Bric-
klin, individually, (“expert respondent”) have violated provisions of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the Commis-
sion that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, alleges:

PARAGRAPH 1.

(a) Buckingham Productions, Inc., trading and doing business as
Rotation Diet Center, 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; Fur-
long-Elliot Corp., 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; Freedom
Center, Inc., 78 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; Plaza Business
Services, Inc., 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; N.F. Rotation,
Inc., 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; and Rotation-Freedom
Diet, Inc., 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania; and Health and
Diet Corp., Inc., 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania are Pennsyl-
vania corporations.

* Complaint issued June 24, 1985. Published at 106 F.T.C. 115 (1985).
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(b) Furlong-Elliot Corp. dominates and controls the acts and prac-
tices of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Buckingham Productions, Inc.;
Freedom Center, Inc.; Plaza Business Services, Inc.; N.F. Rotation,
Inc.; and Rotation-Freedom Diet, Inc.

(c) Howard Elliot is an officer of Furlong-Elliot Corp. Howard Elliot
formulates, directs and controls the acts and practices of the corpo-
rate respondents, including the acts and practices alleged in this
complaint. His address is 73 Valley Drive, Furlong, Pennsylvania.

(d) Dr. Barry Bricklin is a clinical psychologist, with a doctor of
philosophy degree in psychology, and a license to practice psychology
in Pennsylvania. He is now and at all material times has been an
associate professor of clinical psychology at Hahnemann University.
His address is 470 General Washington Road, Wayne, Pennsylvania.
Expert respondent Bricklin possesses an expertise in psychology, and
in the physiological and psychological aspects of dieting, superior to
that generally.acquired by ordinary individuals.

Par. 2. Respondents manufacture, offer for sale, and sell weight
reduction and/or weight control programs and products. Expert re-
spondent Dr. Barry Bricklin, for his part, developed some of the basic
principles upon which the weight reduction and/or weight control
programs offered for sale through the corporate respondents are
based. Expert respondent Bricklin has had a continuing role in the
marketing of these programs by serving as the Director of the pro-
grams’ Professional Advisory Board, and by providing advice concern-
ing the products and programs to Howard Elliot, to other respondents,
and/or to employees of the respondents as requested. In addition,
expert respondent Bricklin has aided in the promotion and sale of
these weight reduction and/or weight control programs and preducts
by providing as an expert in the field endorsements of the efficacy of
the programs and products that appear in advertisements. The adver-
tisements in which expert respondent Bricklin’s endorsements ap-
pear depict him as possessing an expertise in psychology, and in the
physiological and psychological aspects of dieting, superior to that
generally acquired by ordinary individuals.

Par. 3. Respondents have disseminated or caused to be disseminat-
ed, advertisements for weight reduction and/or weight control pro-
grams and products that include a “food” and/or a “drug” within the
meaning of these terms in Section 12 of the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act. These advertisements, some of which contain expert re-
spondent Dr. Barry Bricklin’s endorsement, have been disseminated
(a) by United States mails, or in or having an effect upon commerce
by any means for the purpose of inducing, or which have been likely
to induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of food and/or drugs, or
(b) by any means, for the purpose of inducing, or which is likely to
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induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase in or having an effect upon
commerce of food and/or drugs.

PAR. 4. The acts and practices of respondents and expert respondent
Dr. Barry Bricklin alleged in this complaint have been in or affecting
commerce.

Pagr. 5. Typical of respondents’ advertisements, but not necessarily
inclusive thereof, are the advertisements attached hereto as Exhibits
A through L. Specifically, the aforesaid advertisements contain the
following statements:

(a) “Women usually lose 8 to 20 pounds a month, men 12 to 25 pounds [on the
Rotation Diet).”

() “[ . .. The] ‘No Frills’ Rotation Diet Plan . . . works just like the original Plan.
It’s just as safe, just as effective. . . .”

(c) “Now you can truly eat whatever you want, as much as you want without feeling
guilty and you’ll still lose weight.”

(d) “The all natural diet—no drugs or medicine! The Rotation Diet is really SANE
and PROVEN SAFE!”

(e) “My total loss so far has been 62 pounds . . . There are thousands of Rotation Diet
Center Members who've lost as much weight as I have. Even more!”

() *Reach your goal then keep it off with the Rotation Diet Maintenance Plan.”

(2)“...[R]eal breakthrough [of the Rotation Diet] is the unique way it allows a person
to find his or her right weight and then stay there.”

(h) “Once you reach your weight goal, you only diet two days each week. Then as your
body adjusts to its new weight, you diet just one day a week. You'll be able to stay slim
all your life . . . comfortably and easily.”

(i) “Q. What do the [Rotation] tablets do?

A. They stop all hunger and increase your energy level.”

(j) “Rotation Wafers makes (sic) the diet work. They’re critical to the success of the
diet because they: STOP HUNGER (yet they’re not a medicine, drug, or shot, so they’re
perfectly safe) . . . ELIMINATE FATIGUE. . . .”

(k) “Take-A-Break Tablets are specially formulated to work with the Rotation Diet
and help to keep food from turning to fat. This means that for one day, two days, any
number up to 15 days, you can enjoy taking a break from your Rotation Diet. Soon as
you . . . get back on the Rotation Diet . . . in one week or less you’ll be back at your
‘Pre-Break’ weight.”

() “[1]t saves you more than it costs. . . . You’ll save more than you spend on this diet!
Most people cut about 40% off their food bill because they’ve cut down on expensive
foods during their three Balance Days a week.”

(m) “Q. How much weight can I really lose on the FREEDOM DIET?

A....[Als a rule, women usually lose anywhere from 8 to 20 pounds the first
month; men up to 25 pounds.”

(n) “The Freedom Chewable Tablets are the key to your weight-loss success. They
contain no medicine or drugs, yet they stop hunger and help you to feel good on your
diet day.”

(0) “Q. Can the FREEDOM DIET harm me in any way?

A. No. Our experience is that the diet when followed accurately, takes off weight
safely and naturally.”

(p) “After You Reach Your Goal, It’s Easy to Maintain. Once you've lost all the weight
you want, it’s easy to keep it off because FREEDOM DIET has a special Maintenance
Program. You'll reduce your Diet Days to 2 per week . . . then as your system adjusts
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to your new weight, you’ll cut back to just 1 diet day per week and you'll be able to stay
slim for the rest of your life!”

(@) “Here’s how the FREEDOM DIET works: This amazing diet actually let you eat
and drink what and whenever you want on TUESDAYS, THURSDAYS, SATURDAYS
AND SUNDAYS. You can have foods like spaghetti, ravioli, fettucini, and pizza. Bread
and potatoes too. And desserts like chocolate layer cake, ice cream, banana splits,
sundaes, pecan pie with whipped cream—whatever your favorites might be! You can
even have double helpings of everything because that’s the whole idea of the FREE-
DOM DIET. You’re FREE to eat anything you want, as much as you want 4 days every
week.”

(r) “Our ‘Make-A-Break’ Plan will help you maintain your weight for up to 15 days
when you have to take a break from FREEDOM DIET.”

(s) “[TThe majority of women [on the Rotation-Freedom Diet] fit within range of 8 to
20 pounds loss during the first month, men usually lose more.”

(t) “Take-A-Break Tablets [in the Rotation-Freedom Diet] let you go off your diet for
9 days without regaining.”

Par. 6. Typical of the statements in endorsements authorized by
expert respondent Dr. Barry Bricklin, which appear in respondents’
advertisements, and are attached hereto as Exhibits A and I, are the
following:

“Q. Does the Rotation Diet really work? Do people lose weight on it?

A. It works extremely well. But as any doctor with years of experience in weight
control knows, designing a way to lose weight is only a small part of the challenge. My
years of observation of this diet convince me that its real breakthrough is the unique
way it allows a person to find his or her right weight and then stay there. . ..

Q. How much weight can I lose?

A. Women usually lose 8 to 20 pounds a month, men 12 to 25 pounds. The amount
depends on many personal variables, including the total amount of weight you have
to lose. . ..”

Par. 7. Respondents’ advertisements also contain the following
statements, which purport to be actual and genuine testimonials from
customers of the Rotation Diet Center:

(@) * ‘The Rotation Tablets taste like Necco Wafers. They really stop my hunger and
increase my energy level. I feel good on my 3 diet days!” E.R., Boston, Massachusetts”

(b) I really pig-out on my free days—pizza, cheesecake, beer, potato chips. I eat to
my ‘heart’s content’ and have still lost 57 pounds!” N.M., Princeton, New Jersey”

(¢) * ‘I save enough on my 3 diet days to more then pay for the whole week. The diet
actually costs me nothing!” J.A., Stowe, Ohio”

(d) *“ ‘The all natural diet—no drugs or medicine! The Rotation Diet is really SANE
and PROVEN SAFE!' C.D., Wilmington, DE”

(e) * I just used your switching process to make Wednesday a FREE DAY—it worked
great!’ A.Z., Hartford, CT”

(f) © ‘T've been on maintenance for 6 months and it’s working great! I now have only
ONE diet day each 